
  MOUND CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
May 8, 2018  

 
The City Council of the City of Mound, Hennepin County, Minnesota, met in regular session on 
Tuesday, May 8, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. in the council chambers of the Centennial Building. 
 
Members present: Mayor Mark Wegscheid, Council members Kelli Gillispie, Jeff Bergquist, and 
Ray Salazar. 
 
Members absent:  Council Member Jennifer Peterson 
 
Others present:  City Manager Eric Hoversten, Consulting City Planner Rita Trapp, Jeanne 
Brustad, Andrew Spilseth, John McKinley, T Cody Turnquist, Peter Meyer, James Dahl, Patricia 
McGrath, David Olson, Mindy Andersen, and Administrative Assistant Rebecca Kress 
 
Consent agenda: All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine in 
nature by the Council. There will be no separate discussion on these items unless a 
Councilmember or citizen so requests, in which event it will be removed from the Consent 
Agenda and considered in normal sequence. 
 
1.  Open meeting  
Mayor Wegscheid called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.   
 
2.  Pledge of Allegiance  
 
3.  Approve Agenda, with any amendments  
MOTION made by Salazar, seconded by Bergquist, to approve the agenda.  All voted in favor.  
Motion carried. 
 
4.  Consent Agenda 

MOTION made by Salazar, seconded by Gillispie, to approve the consent agenda.  Upon roll 
call vote, all voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

 
A. Approve payment of claims in the amount of $486,498.86. 

 
B. Approve minutes: April 24, 2018 regular meeting 

 
C. Appoint Andrew Drilling as Assistant Weed Inspector 

 
D.  Approve First Amendment to the Lease Agreement between the Lake Minnetonka 
 Conservation District and the City of Mound  

 
E.  Approve Admin Policy ADM-005 Seat Belt Policy 
 
F. RESOULTION NO. 18-40:  RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE ORDER NO.4, 
 2017 STREET, UTILITY AND RETAINING WALL IMPROVEMENTS - CITY PROJECT 
 NO. PW-17-01, PARK CONSTRUCTION AT NO CHANGE IN COST 
 
G. RESOLUTION NO. 18-41:  RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AWARD OF CONTRACT 
 TO GEISLINGER AND SONS FOR 2018 STREET AND UTILITY IMPROVEMENT 
 PROJECT (WESTEDGE BLVD) VIA COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT WITH MCES 
 
H. RESOLUTION NO. 18-42:  RESOLUTION APPROVING PERMITS FOR 2018 MUSIC  
 IN THE PARK SUMMER CONCERT SERIES AT SURFSIDE PARK AND BEACH AND  
 HARBOR DISTRICT AND WAIVING FEES DUE TO PUBLIC PURPOSE OF  
 GATHERING 



Mound City Council Minutes – May 8, 2018 

 
I. RESOLUTION NO. 18-43:  RESOLUTION APPROVING PERMITS FOR 2018 RIVER 
 VALLEY CHURCH ANNUAL PICNIC BEING HELD ON JUNE 10, 2018 AT SURFSIDE 
 PARK AND BEACH 
 
J. RESOLUTION NO. 18-44:  RESOLUTION APPROVING PUBLIC GATHERING  
 PERMIT FOR 2018 MINNESOTA BASS CLASSIC FISHING TOURNAMENT BEING 
 HELD ON JUNE 2, 2018 AT SURFSIDE PARK AND BEACH 
 

5.  Comments and suggestions from citizens present on any item not on the agenda. 
James Dahl, 2118 Belmont Lane, asked about crosswalk flashers at the crosswalk near the post 
office.  City Manager Eric Hoversten said that there have been flashers installed on the 
crosswalk warning signs.  Hoversten added that as the activities in the Harbor District increase 
the City will be engaging the County and the Three Rivers Park District to reorganize the 
pedestrian crosswalk with a goal of combining the trail crossing and the pedestrian crosswalk to 
allow for a safer environment for pedestrians and drivers.   
  
Peter Meyer, 5748 Sunset Road, asked about the potential library project.  Meyer said that there 
is some concern in the community about whether the library will be torn down and rebuilt or 
simply remodeled.  Meyer added that the community feels that the library is adequate and 
doesn't necessarily need a new building to be built.  Meyer asked that the City follow up and 
keep the community informed about the next steps and happenings with the library building.  
Salazar asked Meyer if there was going to be a meeting on June 7, 2018 at 9:00 am at the 
library and Meyer confirmed there would be a meeting of the Friends of the Westonka Library on 
that date and time.  Salazar said, a few weeks ago County Commissioner Callison had 
addressed the City Council and stated the County was planning to build a new Library.  Salazar 
added that the library that is currently in place is nice and very adequate. 
 
6.  Jeanne Brustad, Gillespie Center Board Member with an annual update 
Jeanne Brustad presented a power point with information about the Gillespie Center and what 
the facility has to offer the community and thanked the Council and the City for their support and 
contributions which make the center so successful.  Brustad said the facility was built in 2001 
and while the Gillespie Center is technically a senior center they consider the facility to be a 
community center.  Brustad spoke about some of the services the center provides including 
health services for seniors and medical care counseling.  Brustad added that Mindy Anderson is 
the Center Director.  Brustad introduced Blake Angleton as the Board President.  Brustad added 
there are two main management groups, which include the Gillespie Board, which works on 
maintaining the finances of the center and the Advisory Council, which manages planning and 
organizing of activities at the center. 
 
Brustad said volunteers are a large part of the success of the center and those volunteers are 
made up of seniors, high school students and others of all ages from the community. The center 
has a coffee group that meets every morning.  Brustad added that the center has many different 
activities including exercise groups, photography group, card clubs, craft clubs and new groups 
added and changed all the time as the need arises.  She added that many of these groups are 
open to all people in the community as well as members.  Brustad said that the center is very 
involved in the community, and that the volunteers help with the Spirit of the Lake Festival 
(SOTL), WeCAN and at the Hennepin County Library.  Brustad said that the lower level has a 
shop called Hidden Treasures which consists of lightly used wares which can be purchased.  
The Center serves a meal every Wednesday and there are bakery goods available for a 
donation which helps the center raise funds.  The Center has a free lending library that is 
maintained by volunteers.  Brustad thanked the City for their generosity and help in allowing the 
center to carry out so many wonderful things in the community.   
 
Councilor Gillispie asked if the center has an age limit on volunteers as some parents would like 
to bring their children to the center to help out.  Brustad said that all ages are welcome. 



Mound City Council Minutes – May 8, 2018 

 

 
  7.  Planning Commission Recommendations 
 
   A.  Consideration/Action resolution approving text amendment to 2030 Comprehensive 
       Plan to create mixed use land use category 
 
Rita Trapp, Consulting City Planner, presented an overview of the proposed resolution 
approving a text amendment to the 2030 Comprehensive Plan to create a mixed use land use 
category and to reguide the property at 4451 Wilshire Blvd.  Trapp mentioned that the Met 
Council requires all amendments to the 2030 Plan be in their hands by July 1st, 2018 for their 
review.  In the 2030 Comprehensive Plan all of the mixed use is geographically based.  Staff 
recommended having a mixed use district.  Trapp said that the 2030 Plan made a reference to 
the idea that mixed use could be appropriate at major intersections outside of downtown.  Trapp 
added that as the 2040 Comprehensive Plan was being looked at, it became apparent that 
providing the flexibility could be a benefit to multiple properties not included in the core 
downtown area.  Trapp also said that in the 2040 Plan a general mixed use category was 
created.   Trapp said the mixed use definition is meant to support a variety of commercial, 
residential, and public uses and each mixed use district would have its own character and 
approach to mixed use as described in Figure 4.4.  
 
Trapp stated that the property in question is located on the Island at 4451 Wilshire Blvd between 
Wilshire and Tuxedo Blvd.   Trapp added, the area is a 1.28 acre site which is comprised of two 
parcels and the City would like the property, which is currently vacant land, to be viewed as one 
district.  Trapp stated that the application before the Council is to reguide the parcel from 
neighborhood commercial to mixed use.  Trapp said that if this change is adopted, the 2040 
Comprehensive Plan would be changed to show this alteration. 
 
Trapp mentioned that there was a public hearing held which did raise some questions and 
concerns from the public.  These concerns were mainly about the design of the project and 
traffic concerns.  Trapp added that the Planning Commission did recommend the unanimous 
approval of the text amendment to create the mixed use category and the Commission agreed 
the site is appropriate for medium density housing.  However, when the Planning Commission 
addressed reguiding the property in question, there was a 5 to 2 vote due to concerns about the 
appropriate housing type and density.  Trapp said Staff would like to create maximum zoning 
flexibility as the location will likely determine and limit options.  The Commission wanted tighter 
provisions put into place in regard to those options.  Trapp mentioned that since this would be 
an amendment to the 2030 Comprehensive Plan, it would require two-thirds vote of all the 
members of the Council which would be 4 votes.  Trapp asked for questions and/or comments. 
 
Gillispie addressed findings from the Planning Commission meeting on May 1, 2018 and said 
that some residents became concerned when the word "rental" was brought up at the meeting.  
The residents seemed receptive to the mixed-use concept but had more concerns about the 
type of housing.  Mayor Wegscheid said that it is important to note that this is more of a concept 
rather than about a specific project.  Gillispie said that the site is very unique and having 
flexibility will allow for more options when concepts are presented.  Hoversten asked if the 1.28 
acreage includes both parcels.  Trapp confirmed that is correct.   
 
Salazar stated that he does not believe this location should be commercial/high density due to 
the proximity to the homes in the area and based on the public’s stating what they do not want.  
Salazar referenced The Mist, located in Spring Park, which has multi-family housing and 
commercial at street level which is basically empty and is on a seemingly busy road.  Salazar 
stated that high rise apartments are not what the public wants.  Salazar stated if the text 
amendment is approved this would open up the possibility for  high density multi-family in this 
area.   
 



Mound City Council Minutes – May 8, 2018 

 

Trapp explained that this development would still be subject to no more than 3 stories or 35 feet 
in height so a "high-rise" concept would not work in this location due to those limits. Mayor 
Wegscheid asked if Staff has determined the maximum capacity for the area.  Trapp said the 
numbers would fall somewhere in the 15 to 16 units per acre.  Bergquist said that number 
should be lowered.  Gillispie added that there are many options that could be available for the 
site such as condos, etc.  Salazar said that multi-family could create more congestion in the 
area.   
 
Gillispie stated that it is not an easy piece of property to deal with and it would be narrow 
minded to limit the potential options for the space.  Gillispie asked how many times the public 
has asked for more commercial in the area.  Salazar confirmed that a commercial use has been 
requested by the public repeatedly.  Gillispie stated that in order to warrant more businesses to 
be viable in the community, the head count and population would need to increase.  Gillispie 
added that this space could provide a nice buffer between the already multi-family housing 
options, light commercial, and the single-family homes in the area.  Salazar is concerned with 
community blow back in regard to multi-family housing.  Salazar asked what the density was for 
the Pelican Point property.  Trapp confirmed they are R1 which is low-density housing or less 
than 6 units per acre.  Salazar asked what the City has that is considered medium density or 7-
12 units per acre.  Trapp said that the Grandview apartments near the library are medium 
density residential.  Hoversten stated that the Lost Lake Villas would fall under medium density 
housing at around 10 units per acre.  Hoversten went on to say that the City ought to design 
guidance to fit the character that the City would want for the community which is also responsive 
to what market can deliver.  Hoversten added that once projects are submitted to the City, those 
projects can be vetted and will go through another level of approval at that time.   
 
Gillispie suggested the Council see the concept that was presented at the Planning Commission 
to help to better understand some possibilities for the space.  Salazar suggested the potential 
builder speak to the Council and present their concept to help better understand what would be 
possible. 
 
T Cody Turnquist addressed the Council.  Turnquist stated he is representing his Father, Rolf 
Turnquist, who has owned the property at 4451 Wilshire Blvd. for over 35 years.  Turnquist 
stated the land has been sitting vacant for over 35 years and the currently zoning of the parcel 
as neighborhood/commercial makes it very difficult to find anything that will work and be viable 
in that location.  Turnquist said that it would be hard to compete with the Harbor District 
development with this space because of its location.  Turnquist said that the site would consist 
of 60% green space, 25% would be principle structure with the remaining 15% would be 
driveway.  Turnquist also said that if a traditional townhouse complex were built, there would be 
considerably more hard cover and the buffer tree line would be gone.   
 
Andrew Spilseth, Turnquist's business partner, added some financial perspectives on the 
project.  Spilseth added that there are also some unknowns with excavating the site.  Turnquist 
said the commercial side of the building would be 3-stories and would be visible from Wilshire 
Blvd. and the existing commercial property and the green space/residential side would only be 
2-stories and be visible and facing the residential side of parcel with the buffer created by the 
tree line.  
 
Salazar said that the Council needs to take into account what is best for the City and what the 
public wants.  Turnquist said that this concept is very preliminary and the focus is to make the 
best solution for the area.  Mayor Wegscheid stated that there is a market for young 
professionals who want to live in this area but do not want to own a home.  Wegscheid added 
that the City does not currently have market rate rental property for that section of the 
population.  Salazar said that was a very good point and many of the available rentals in town 
need some help.  
 



Mound City Council Minutes – May 8, 2018 

 

Mayor Wegscheid said that when you add competition to the rental market it may encourage 
other property owners to improve their properties and add amenities.  Gillispie added that her 
employees who want to rent in town have found it next to impossible to find higher end rentals 
currently.  Gillispie added that higher-end market rate rentals are needed in this area.  Mayor 
Wegscheid stated that in order to justify more commercial development more people are 
needed to ensure commercial development success.  Salazar said that the presentation was 
good and we do need a higher quality product in town to allow for young professionals 
potentially to join our community.  Turnquist said they will seek more feedback from the 
community to help them with the design in order to align with what the community wants built.  
Salazar said he could go with the 7-15 unit per acre concept.  Bergquist said he would have 
liked to see the lower-density instead. 
 

MOTION made by Wegscheid, seconded by Bergquist, to approve resolution approving text 
amendment to 2030 comprehensive plan to create mixed use land use category.  All voted in 
favor.  Motion carried. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 18-45:  RESOLUTION APPROVING TEXT AMENDMENT TO 2030 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TO CREATE MIXED USE LAND USE CATEGORY 
 
 B.  Consideration/Action on resolution approving amendment to the 2030  
       Comprehensive Plan to re-guide Property at 4451 Wilshire Boulevard from 
       Neighborhood Commercial to Mixed-Use 
 

MOTION made by Salazar, seconded by Gillispie, to approve resolution approving amendment 
to 2030 comprehensive plan to reguide property at 4451 Wilshire Boulevard from neighborhood 
commercial to mixed use planning case no. 18-06 PID No. 19-117-23-31-0021 and 19-117-23-
31-0020.  All voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 18-46:  RESOLUTION APPROVING AMENDMENT TO 2030 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TO REGUIDE PROPERTY AT 4451 WILSHIRE BOULEVARD 
FROM NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL TO MIXED USE PLANNING CASE NO. 18-06 PID 
NO. 19-117-23-31-0021 AND 19-117-23-31-0020 
  
7.  Information/Miscellaneous 
A. Comments/reports from Council members:   
City Manager Eric Hoversten mentioned the following community items of note: 

 May 19, 2018 - Farmers Market Opens 

 May 17, 2018 - WeCan Open House from 4 pm - 6 pm  

 June 2, 2018 - Fire Department Fish Fry- Tickets are available at the Fire House & 
Liquor Store 

 July 14, 2018 - Music in the Park 

 July 20-21, 2018 - SOTL Festival 

 August 11, 2018 - Dog Days  

Mayor Wegscheid mentioned the recent Spring Park fire and gave his condolences to 
the family and thanked the Fire Dept. for their quick response and hard work. 
 

B. Reports: Bolton & Menk - 03/31/18 YTD  
C. Minutes:  
 
D. Correspondence:  MN Public Utilities Commission - Order initiating investigation of   
         Frontier Communications    
 
10. Adjourn 



Mound City Council Minutes – May 8, 2018 

 

MOTION made by Gillispie, seconded by Bergquist, to adjourn at 8:43 p.m.  All voted in favor.  
Motion carried. 
 
      ______________________________ 
      Mayor Mark Wegscheid 
_______________________________ 
Attest: Catherine Pausche, Clerk 


